
 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

TOWN HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 155 F. Road, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Tuesday, April 02, 2024 

Community Conversation shall begin at 6:00 PM 
Council Meeting shall begin at 6:30 PM 

 

TOWN COUNCIL 
Mayor 

Laura Danowski - Seat 2 

Vice Mayor 
Robert Shorr - Seat 4 

Council Members 
Phillis Maniglia - Seat 1        

Marianne Miles – Seat 3 (outgoing)                  
Anita Kane - Seat 3 (incoming) 

Margaret Herzog - Seat 5 
 

TOWN ADMINISTRATION 
Town Manager 

Francine L. Ramaglia 

Acting Town Clerk 
Services provided by The Valiant Management Team, LLC 

Public Works Director 
Richard Gallant 

Town Attorney  
Elizabeth Lenihan 

Torcivia, Donlon, Goddeau & Rubin, P.A. 
 



  
Town Council Regular Meeting                    Agenda                                          April 02, 2024 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves                         Page 2 
 

The public is encouraged to visit the Town’s website, www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov, for up-to-date 
information regarding the meeting. 

ADA NOTICE 

In accordance with the provisions of the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons in need 
of a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding shall within five (5) business days 
prior to any proceeding, contact the Town Clerk’s Office, 155 F Road, Loxahatchee Groves, 
Florida, (561) 793-2418. 

PUBLIC MEETING INFORMATION 

Civility: Being "civil" is not a restraint on the First Amendment right to speak out, but it is more 
than just being polite. Civility is stating your opinions and beliefs, without degrading someone 
else in the process. Civility requires a person to respect other people's opinions and beliefs even 
if he or she strongly disagrees. It is finding a common ground for dialogue with others. It is being 
patient, graceful, and having a strong character. That is why we say "Character Counts" in the 
Town of Loxahatchee. Civility is practiced at all Town meetings. 

Quasi-Judicial Hearings: Some of the matters on the agenda may be "quasi-judicial" in nature. 
Pursuant to Section 120-020 of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, ex-parte 
communications regarding these items are prohibited and may provide a basis to deny an 
application. All witnesses testifying will be "sworn" prior to their testimony. However, the 
public is permitted to comment, without being sworn. An unsworn comment will be given its 
appropriate weight by the Town Council.  

Appeal of Decision: If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with 
respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he or she will need a record of the proceeding, 
and for that purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, 
which record includes any testimony and evidence upon which the appeal will be based. 

Consent Agenda: Those matters included under the Consent Calendar are typically self-
explanatory, non-controversial, and are not expected to require review or discussion. All items 
will be enacted by a single motion. If discussion on an item is desired, any Town Council 
Member, without a motion, may "pull" or remove the item to be considered separately. If any 
item is quasi-judicial, it may be removed from the Consent Calendar to be heard separately, by 
a Town Council Member, or by any member of the public desiring it to be heard, without a 
motion.  

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council, it is requested 
that you complete a Comment Card before speaking. Please fill it out completely with your full 
name and address so that your comments can be entered correctly in the minutes and given to 
the Town Clerk. During the agenda item portion of the meeting, you may only address the item 
on the agenda being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may 

http://www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov/


  
Town Council Regular Meeting                    Agenda                                          April 02, 2024 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves                         Page 3 
 

address any item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all 
public comments.  

 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE FOLLOWED BY A MOMENT OF SILENCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL - ADDITIONS, DELETIONS AND MODIFICATIONS: 

 
PUBLIC AUDIENCE: 
Comments from the Public on Non-Agenda Items 
 
Public Comments for all meetings may be received by email, or in writing to the Town 
Clerk’s Office until 5:00 PM on the day of the meeting. Comments will be “received and 
filed” to be acknowledged as part of the official public record of the meeting. Town 
Council meetings are live-streamed and close-captioned for the general public via our 
website, instructions are posted there. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, COMMUNITY/SPECIAL EVENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 

 

1. Presentation of March 2024 Election Results for the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves Candidates 
 

2. Recognize Outgoing Council Member 
 
3. Oath of Office for New Council Member 

 
4. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-17 to Appoint the Mayor 
 
5. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-18 to Appoint the Vice Mayor 
 

RECESS TOWN COUNCIL MEETING & CALL TO ORDER DEPENDENT WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT 



  
Town Council Regular Meeting                    Agenda                                          April 02, 2024 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves                         Page 4 
 

6. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-DD01 to appoint Chair of Board of 
Supervisors 

7. Approval of Resolution No. 2024-DD01 to appoint Treasurer of Board of 
Supervisors 

**** Short Recess: Cake will be served after the swearing-in ceremony. **** 

RECONVENE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
8. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2024-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA ACCEPTING EASEMENTS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

REGULAR AGENDA: 
 

9. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2024-14 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA APPROVING THE SCOPE AND PRICING FOR INSTALLATION OF 
A BRIDGE CULVERT AT 12th PLACE NORTH AND F ROAD; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS IN FORMS ACCEPTABLE TO THE 
TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO IMPLEMENT THE INTENT OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER AN THE TOWN ATTORNEY 
TO TAKE SUCH ACTIONS AS ARE NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

10. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2024-15 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT  FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 
WITH  ATLANTIC SOUTHERN PAVING AND SEALCOATING, LLC, FOR TOWN FY24 
ROAD PAVING PROGRAM; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS IN FORMS ACCEPTABLE TO THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN 
ATTORNEY TO IMPLEMENT THE INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING 
THE TOWN MANAGER AND THE TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE SUCH ACTIONS AS 



  
Town Council Regular Meeting                    Agenda                                          April 02, 2024 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves                         Page 5 
 

ARE NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

11. APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2024-16 REMOVED 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, APPOINTING THE MEMBERS OF THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
SCHOLARSHIP FUND COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

------ OR ------ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2021-26; PROVIDING FOR 
USE BY DONATION OF FUNDS HELD IN THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
SCHOLARSHIP FUND; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
 

12. DISCUSSION OF UNIFORM REQUIREMENTS FOR TOWN 
ADVISORY BOARDS 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA ADOPTING CHAPTER 2 “ADMINISTRATION”, ARTICLE VII 
“TOWN ADVISORY BOARDS” TO PROVIDE FOR APPLICABILITY, COMPOSITION, 
QUORUM, ELIGIBILITY, QUALIFICATIONS, APPOINTMENT, TERMS, REMOVAL, 
VACANCIES, OFFICERS, COMPENSATION, AND PROCEDURES REGARDING TOWN 
ADVISORY BOARDS; REORGANIZATION AND REVISIONS TO CHAPTER 34 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH NEW TOWN 
ADVISORY BOARD ARTICLE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 



  
Town Council Regular Meeting                    Agenda                                          April 02, 2024 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves                         Page 6 
 

 

 

13. Discussion on Rules of Procedure for the Town Council (Resolution No. 

2019-65) and Boards and Committees (Resolutions No. 2015-18) 

 

14. Discussion on Town Council’s Meeting Schedule  

 
15. Discussion regarding Roadway & Drainage and CIP Updates 

  
 

REPORTS BY THE TOWN ADMINISTRATION: 
 

• Town Manager 
• Town Attorney 
• Town Clerk 
• Public Works Director  

 
 

STATEMENTS BY THE TOWN COUNCIL: 
 

• Council Member Phillis Maniglia (Seat 1) 
• Council Member Laura Danowski (Seat 2) 
• Council Member Anita Kane (Seat 3) 
• Council Member Robert Shorr (Seat 4)  
• Council Member Margaret Herzog (Seat 5) 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
 



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Item # 4 & 5 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Francine Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024    

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2024-17 and Resolution No. 2024-18 

Background: 

Section 2 of the Town Charter, as amended by Ordinance No. 2019-10 states that after the Fourth 
Tuesday of each March, Council will convene during the meeting to elect a Mayor and Vice Mayor 
to represent the Town. No council member may be selected as mayor for more than two 
consecutive years.  

Recommendation: 

Discuss and approve Resolution No. 2024-17 and Resolution No. 2024-18 to elect a mayor and 
vice mayor.  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 7 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 8 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA ELECTING A MAYOR FOR THE 
ENSUING YEAR 2024-2025, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 2 (2)(a) of the Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

requires the Council to elect from among its members a Mayor, who shall serve for a period of 

one year; and 

WHEREAS, this same section of the Charter requires this election of a Mayor to be 

done  annually at the first Regular Council Meeting after the fourth Tuesday of each March; 

and 

WHEREAS, all candidates have been certified as elected effective March 29, 2024; 

and  

WHEREAS, newly elected officials have taken the Oath of Office. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. ______________________is hereby elected Mayor of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves, Florida; and shall forthwith enter upon and assume the duties of said 

office for the ensuing year. 

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

Councilmember ______________________ offered for foregoing Resolution. 

Councilmember __________________ seconded the motion and upon being put to vote was as 

follows: 

 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 9 of 187



Resolution 2024-17 
 

Aye       Nay     Absent 

 PHILLIS MANIGLIA     □  □    □ 

LAURA DANOWSKI     □  □     □ 

ANITA KANE      □  □    □  

ROBERT SHORR      □  □    □ 

MARGARET HERZOG       □  □    □ 
 

 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF APRIL 2024.  
 

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA  

 
                            ______________________________ 
ATTEST:                Phillis Maniglia 
 
                 ______________________________           
___________________________                             Laura Danowski  
Valerie Oakes, Acting Town Clerk        
                 ______________________________                                                     
Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:            Anita Kane 
 
___________________________   ______________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Robert Shorr  
 
       ______________________________ 

      Margaret Herzog 
 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 10 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-18 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA ELECTING A VICE MAYOR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 2024-
2025 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 2 (3)(a) of the Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves requires the 
 Council to elect from among its members a Vice Mayor, who shall serve for a period of 
 one year; and 

WHEREAS, this same section of the Charter requires this election of a Vice Mayor to be done 
 annually at the first Regular Council Meeting after the fourth Tuesday of each March; and 

WHEREAS, all candidates have been certified as elected effective March 29, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, newly elected officials have taken the Oath of Office. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1: _____________________is hereby elected Vice Mayor of the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves, Florida; and shall forthwith enter upon and assume the duties of said office for the ensuing 
year. 

Section 2: This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 

_______________________offered for foregoing Resolution. __________________seconded the 
motion and upon being put to vote was as follows: 

Aye       Nay     Absent 

 PHILLIS MANIGLIA     □  □    □ 

LAURA DANOWSKI     □  □     □ 

ANITA KANE      □  □    □  

ROBERT SHORR      □  □    □ 

MARGARET HERZOG       □  □    □ 
 

 
ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF APRIL 2024.  
 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 11 of 187



Resolution No. 2024-18 

 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA  

 
                            ______________________________ 
ATTEST:                Phillis Maniglia 
 
                 ______________________________           
_______________________                                     Laura Danowski  
Valerie Oakes, Acting Town Clerk        
                 ______________________________                                                     
                 Anita Kane  
APPROVED AS T LEGAL FORM: 
    
                                             ______________________________  
Town Attorney     Robert Shorr  
 
       ______________________________ 

      Margaret Herzog 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 12 of 187



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-DD01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, A DEPENDENT 
DISTRICT OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
ELECTING THE DISTRICT PRESIDENT AND PROVIDING THAT THE 
PRESIDENT SHALL SERVE AS CHAIR AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS; ELECTING THE DISTRICT SECRETARY AND PROVIDING 
BOND AMOUNT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (“District”), a former Independent 
Special District, has become a Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District is comprised of the members of the Town 
Council; and, 

WHEREAS, dependency of the District will permit efficiency in managerial and operational 
services required for the District to fulfill its requirements and obligations; and, 

WHEREAS, the District, as a Dependent District of the Town, and the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves, have entered into an Interlocal Agreement for the Town to provide the District 
with goods and services necessary for the District to fulfill its obligations and 
responsibilities, which will promote efficiencies and avoid duplication in functions; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 298.14, Florida Statutes, the Board of Supervisors is required to 
elect the President for the District and the Secretary for the District.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, THAT: 

Section 1.  The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 
true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Board of Supervisors for the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, a 
Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby chooses from among the 
members of the Board __________to serve as President for the District.  The President 
shall also serve as Chair at meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the District.   

Section 3. The Board of Supervisors for the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, a 
Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby elects __________to serve 
as Secretary for the District.  Section 298.14, Florida Statutes, provides that the Board of 
Supervisors may require a bond for the faithful performance of the Secretary’s duties. The 
Board of Supervisors hereby requires a bond in the amount of $0.00. The District shall be 
responsible for the costs of the bond. The Secretary shall serve without compensation. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 13 of 187



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-DD__ 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

Supervisor                    offered the foregoing resolution.  Supervisor                                     seconded 
the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Aye       Nay     Absent 
Phillis Maniglia  □ □ □

Laura Danowski □ □ □

Anita Kane  □ □ □

Robert Shorr  □ □ □

Margaret Herzog □ □ □

ADOPTED BY THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, A 

DEPENDENT DISTRICT OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 

THIS ____ DAY OF_____________ 2024. 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST: Chairperson/President  

_______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Clerk for the Loxahatchee Groves  Supervisor 
Water Control District 

____________________________________ 
Supervisor  

____________________________________ 
Supervisor  

____________________________________ 
Attorney for the Loxahatchee Groves Supervisor  
Water Control District  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 14 of 187



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-DD02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, A DEPENDENT DISTRICT OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPOINTING THE 
DISTRICT TREASURER AND PROVIDING BOND AMOUNT AND 
COMPENSATION; DESIGNATING THE TOWN MANAGER AS FISCAL 
AGENT FOR THE DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
WHEREAS, the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (“District”), a former Independent 

Special District, has become a Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District is comprised of the members of the Town 
Council; and, 

WHEREAS, dependency of the District will permit efficiency in managerial and operational 
services required for the District to fulfill its requirements and obligations; and, 

WHEREAS, the District, as a Dependent District of the Town, and the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves, have entered into an Interlocal Agreement for the Town to provide the District 
with goods and services necessary for the District to fulfill its obligations and 
responsibilities, which will promote efficiencies and avoid duplication in functions; and,  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 298.17, Florida Statutes, the Board of Supervisors is required to 
appoint a Treasurer for the District and may employ a Fiscal Agent for the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, THAT: 
Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 
Section 2. The Board of Supervisors for the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, a 

Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby appoints 
_________________________to serve as Treasurer for the District.  The bond required by 
Section 298.17, Florida Statutes, shall be in the amount of $0.00.  The District shall be 
responsible for the costs of the Bond.  The Treasurer shall serve without compensation. 

Section 3. The Board of Supervisors for the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, a 
Dependent District of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby designates the Town 
Manager of Town of Loxahatchee Groves or her designee as the Fiscal Agent for the 
District as authorized by Section 298.17, Florida Statutes, pursuant to and consistent with 
the Interlocal Agreement between the District, a Dependent District of the Town, and the 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves.  The Fiscal Agent shall be compensated pursuant to and 
through the terms of her agreement with the Town.  

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 15 of 187



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-DD__ 

Section 5. If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption. 
Supervisor                                   offered the foregoing resolution. Supervisor                           seconded 
the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Aye       Nay     Absent 
 Phillis Maniglia       □   □    □ 

Laura Danowski       □   □    □  

Anita Kane        □   □    □  

Robert Shorr        □   □    □  

Margaret Herzog       □   □    □  

 

ADOPTED BY THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, A 

DEPENDENT DISTRICT OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 

THIS ____ DAY OF______________ 2024. 

 
     LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER  
     CONTROL DISTRICT 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chairperson/President  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Clerk for the Loxahatchee Groves   Supervisor 
Water Control District 
       ____________________________________ 
       Supervisor  
 
       ____________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Supervisor  
 
        ____________________________________ 
Attorney for the Loxahatchee Groves   Supervisor  
Water Control District  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 16 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Item # 8

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Francine Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024    

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2024-13 - Accepting Easement 

Background: 

The Town of Loxahatchee Groves has received a grant of easement (backup attached) for roadway, 
drainage and utility purposes adjacent to Collecting Canal Road for the property located at 15045 
Collecting Canal Road. 

Recommendation:  

Approve Resolution No. 2024-13   and accept the easement for recordation. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 17 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 18 of 187



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

            RESOLUTION NO. 2024-13  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA ACCEPTING AN EASEMENT; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves desires to obtain 

Easements for Roadway, Drainage and Utility purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Bianca M. Berktold, has executed a Roadway/Drainage/Utility Easement 

Agreement, concerning property she owns located at 15045 Collecting Canal Road in 

Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, in favor of the Town; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 05-085 of the Town’s Unified Land Development 

Code and Town Council adopted procedures, Easements must be accepted by the Town Council 

prior to recording; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that accepting the  

Roadway/Drainage/Utility Easement identified herein serves a valid public purpose. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.   The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution upon adoption hereof. 

Section 2. The Town Council accepts the Easement identified herein and directs Town 

staff to have said Easement recorded in the public records. 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4. If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 5. This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption.  

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing resolution.  Councilmember                                    

___________________seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

              

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 19 of 187



Resolution No. 2024 -13 

Page 2 of 2 
 

        Aye       Nay     Absent 
 ______________, MAYOR     □   □    □ 

______________, VICE MAYOR    □   □    □  

______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □     □ 

______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF __________, 2024.  

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor  
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Valerie Oakes, Acting Town Clerk   Vice Mayor  
        
       ____________________________________ 
       Councilmember  
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
       ____________________________________ 
       Councilmember  
 
        ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Councilmember  
 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 20 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

Agenda Item # 9 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Richard Gallant, Public Works Director 

VIA: Francine Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2024-14 approving Issuance of a Purchase Order with 
Johnson Davis utilizing Boynton Beach Piggyback Agreement for the 12th 
Place North and F Road bridge culvert 

Background: 
The Town entered into an agreement with Johnson-Davis, Inc. utilizing the City of Boynton Beach 
BID No. 019-2821-19/IT: Repairs and Emergency Services. The Town seeks to install a bridge 
culvert at 12th Place North and D Road utilizing pricing under this agreement. The scope and 
pricing for the bridge culvert is attached in exhibit “A” and totals $136,640. 

Funds for this bridge culvert are available in the capital improvement plan budgeted for FY24. 

Recommendations: 

Move that Town Council adopt Resolution No. 2024-14 approving issuance of a purchase order 
for Johnson-Davis for installation of a bridge culvert at 12th Place North and F Road for a total 
cost of $136,640. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 21 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 22 of 187



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

            RESOLUTION NO. 2024 -14 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A 
PURCHASE ORDER FOR INSTALLATION OF A BRIDGE CULVERT AT 
12th PLACE NORTH AND F ROAD; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
MANAGER AN THE TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE SUCH ACTIONS AS 
ARE NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2022-75, adopted by Town Council on 

November 1, 2022, the Town entered into an agreement with Johnson-Davis, Inc. utilizing the 

City of Boynton Beach BID No. 019-2821-19/IT: Repairs and Emergency Services for Water 

Distribution, Wastewater Collection and Storm Water Utility Systems; and  

 WHEREAS, the term of the Contract was renewed by the City of Boynton Beach for a 

term beginning May 8, 2023 and ending May 7, 2024; and  

 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2022-75, Town Council gave authorization to utilize the 

Contract so long as it remains in effect, including renewals or extensions and gave authorization 

for the Mayor to execute any and all documents to implement the use of the Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Town and the vendor entered into an Amendment on August 7, 2023, 

extending the term of the Agreement through May 7, 2024, consistent with the terms of 

Resolution No. 2022-75; and 

WHEREAS, the Town is in need of goods and services for the installation of a bridge 

culvert at 12th Place North and F Road, as stated in the Scope of Work attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that utilizing its agreement with Johnson-

Davis, Inc. to perform the work serves a valid public purpose. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 23 of 187



Resolution No. 2024-14 

 
 

2 

Section 2.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida hereby 

authorizes the issuance of a purchase order to utilize its Agreement with Johnson-Davis, Inc. 

utilizing pricing under Boynton Beach BID No. 019-2821-19/IT for installation of a bridge culvert 

at 12th Place North and F Road and approves the Scope of Work and pricing attached hereto as 

Exhibits “A”. 

Section 3.   The Town manager and Town Attorney are authorized to take such actions as 

are necessary to implement this Resolution.   

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption.  

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing resolution.  Councilmember 

________________ seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

                Aye       Nay     Absent 
 _______________, MAYOR     □   □    □ 

_______________, VICE MAYOR    □   □    □  

_______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □     □ 

_______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

_______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 24 of 187



Resolution No. 2024-14 

 
 

3 

 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF _______________   2024.  

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

       
       ________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor   
  
        ________________________________  
Valerie Oakes, Acting Town Clerk    Vice Mayor  
 
       _______________________________  
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Councilmember    
 
        ________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Councilmember  
 
       ________________________________ 
       Councilmember  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 25 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 26 of 187



JOB NAME: 12th Place North and F Road

Item # DESCRIPTION

BID   

Quantity U.M. BID AMOUNT

  

MOBILIZATION / GENERAL 

CONDITIONS
1.00 LS 5,400.00       5,400.00

CLEARING AND GRUBBING 1.00 LS 4,500.00       4,500.00

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 1.00 LS 3,000.00       3,000.00

TEMPORARY ROADWAY 1.00 LS 9,500.00       9,500.00

96" CAP (10 GAUGE) 40.00 LF 1,350.00       54,000.00

RIP RAP END WALL 59.00 CY 680.00         40,120.00

RUBBLE RIP RAP 82.00 TON 160.00         13,120.00

SOD RESTORATION 300.00 SY 10.00           3,000.00

8" LIMEROCK BASE REPLACEMENT 100.00 SY 40.00           4,000.00

136,640.00$     

* Notes
Bond is not included in our proposal.

No permits are included in our proposal.

Traffic for 12th Place will be put on an earthened canal plug stabilized with base rock

     during culvert installation.

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 27 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 28 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

Agenda Item # 10 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Francine Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024  

SUBJECT: Resolution 2024-15 approving the award of a contract to Atlantic Southern 
Paving and Sealcoating, LLC for the Town FY24 Road Paving Program, IFB 
# 2024-01 

Background: 

The Town has been contemplating paving certain roadway segments as identified in the Town’s 
Capital Improvement Plan. In furtherance of that plan, the Town issued an Invitation for Bids, IFB 
# 2024-01, on February 6, 2024.  The project is to be awarded on a lump sum basis, but the bidders 
had to give a breakdown of the cost for each roadway segment in case a segment had to be 
postponed or cancelled. The 13 roadway segments identified in the bid are: 

1. Gruber Road from C Road to D Road
2. East Citrus Drive from E Road to F Road
3. 161st Terrace North from A Road to end
4. Global Trail from North Road to end
5. West C Road from Forest Lane to Robert Way
6. Kerry Lane, South of Okeechobee, West of F Road
7. 24th Ct N, North of Okeechobee, West of F Road
8. 24th Ct N, North of Okeechobee, East of F Road
9. 147th Avenue North
10. West D Road, North of Southern Blvd, West of D Road
11. Casey Road, East of F Road, West of Folsom Road
12. B Road from existing pavement to North Road
13. North Road from B Road to C Road

A mandatory pre-bid meeting was held on February 21st and representatives from seven (7) 
contracting firms attended the meeting. On March 13th five (5) contractors responded and 
submitted bids. The bids from lowest to highest lump sum were as follows: 

1. Atlantic Southern Paving and Sealcoating, LLC - $1,696,994.00

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 29 of 187



 
155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

 
2. J.W. Cheatham, LLC - $1,793,735.50 

3. R&D Paving, LLC - $2,075,379.00 

4. Ranger Construction Industries, Inc. - $2,097,529.65 

5. MJC Land Development, LLC - $2,348,000.00 

Atlantic Southern Paving and Sealcoating, LLC, is a licensed, qualified contractor and met the 
requirements of the bid submittal. The results of the bid were posted and identified Atlantic 
Southern Paving and Sealcoating, LLC,’s bid as the tentative awardee. There has been no protest 
to the tentative award by the Town. A contract for award to Atlantic Southern Paving and 
Sealcoating, LLC has been prepared and is anticipated to be executed by the contractor, prior to 
the Council’s meeting on April 2, 2024. A construction bond and certificates of insurance will be 
sent along with the executed contract. 

The contract should be awarded to the lowest responsive responsible bidder, subject to budget 
limitations. The cost of the roadway project is approximately 7.5% over the original estimated 
budget. As discussed on First reading of the CIP Ordinance at the Council’s March 5th meeting, 
funding of Casey Road was to come from anticipated FEMA reimbursement. Specifically, there is 
approximately $251,000 to be reimbursed for culvert bridge projects. In addition, there is 
approximately another $150,000 of FEMA monies to be reimbursed to the Road and Drainage 
Funds. If Council directs all FEMA reimbursement to the paving project, that should cover Casey 
Road segment and the $118,000 increase in actual bid price over total estimated costs of the plan. 
As previously discussed with Council the B Road North and North Road from B to C segments 
would be contingent on a receipt of a donation from the Sod Farm. The Second reading of the CIP 
ordinance is currently scheduled for the May 7th, 2024, Council Meeting.  

 
Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that Town Council approves Resolution No. 2024-15 approving the award of a 
contract to Atlantic Southern Paving and Sealcoating, LLC for the Town FY24 Road Paving 
Program, IFB # 2024-01, provided that notice to proceed for segments be issued upon their 
inclusion in the Capital Improvement Plan and subject to receipt of the designated funding.  

 
 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 30 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-15  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING A CONTRACT  FOR 
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES WITH  ATLANTIC SOUTHERN PAVING 
AND SEALCOATING, LLC, FOR TOWN FY24 ROAD PAVING 
PROGRAM SUBJECT TO FUNDING; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS IN FORMS ACCEPTABLE TO 
THE TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO IMPLEMENT THE 
INTENT OF THIS RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
MANAGER AND THE TOWN ATTORNEY TO TAKE SUCH ACTIONS AS 
ARE NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

WHEREAS, in accordance with State Statutes and the Town’s Procurement Code, the Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves, Florida (“Town”) issued Invitation for Bid for Town FY24 Road Paving 
Program IFB # 2024-01 (“IFB”); and   

WHEREAS, bids for the IFB were opened on March 13, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that Atlantic Southern Paving and Sealcoating, 
LLC, was the lowest responsive responsible bidder; and  

WHEREAS, entering into a construction services contract with Atlantic Southern Paving and 
Sealcoating, LLC for Town FY24 Road Paving Program serves a valid public purpose.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT:   

Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true 
and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution; and   

Section 2. The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby approves the attached 
Contract with Atlantic Southern Paving and Sealcoating, LLC, subject to funding. Notices to 
Proceed shall only be issued for segments that are included in the adopted FY24 Capital 
Improvement Plan and have been fully funded. The mayor is authorized to execute any and all 
documents necessary to implement the intent of this Resolution, in forms acceptable to the Town 
Manager and Town Attorney. The Town Manager and Town Attorney are authorized to take such 
actions as are necessary to implement this Resolution.   

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption.  

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing resolution.  Councilmember 
________________ seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 31 of 187



Resolution No. 2024 -  

 2 

 
 

                         Aye       Nay     Absent  
  ________________, MAYOR        □    □     □  

 ________________, VICE MAYOR       □    □     □   

 ________________, COUNCILMEMBER      □    □      □  

 ________________, COUNCILMEMBER      □   □     □  

________________, COUNCILMEMBER                           □   □     □   
 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF APRIL 2024.   

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA  

              
              ________________________________  
ATTEST:            Mayor    
    
               ________________________________   
Valerie Oakes, Acting Town Clerk       Vice Mayor   
  
              _______________________________   
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:    Councilmember       
  
               ________________________________  
Office of the Town Attorney       Councilmember   
  
              ________________________________  
              Councilmember   

  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 32 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 33 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 34 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 35 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 36 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 37 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 38 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 39 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 40 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 41 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 42 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 43 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 44 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 45 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 46 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 47 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 48 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 49 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 50 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 51 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 52 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 53 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 54 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 55 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 56 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 57 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 58 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 59 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 60 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 61 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 62 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 63 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 64 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 65 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 66 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 67 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 68 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 69 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 70 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 71 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 72 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 73 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 74 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 75 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 76 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 77 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 78 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 79 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 80 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 81 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 82 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 83 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 84 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 85 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 86 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 87 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 88 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 89 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 90 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 91 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 92 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 93 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 94 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 95 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 96 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 97 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 98 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 99 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 100 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 101 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 102 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 103 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 104 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 105 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 106 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 107 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 108 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 109 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 110 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 111 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 112 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 113 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 114 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 115 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 116 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 117 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 118 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 119 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 120 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 121 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 122 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 123 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 124 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 125 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 126 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 127 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 128 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 129 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 130 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 131 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 132 of 187



Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 133 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 134 of 187



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGES 135 – 142 HAVE BEEN REMOVED 



This Page Is Blank Intentionally 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 142 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

Item No. # 12 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Francine L. Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Discussion of Ordinance No. 2024-03 regarding uniform requirements for 
Town Advisory Boards 

Background: 

Over the years, the Town Council has adopted several resolutions dealing with various Town 
advisory boards, including, but not limited to, the Scholarship Fund Committee, Charter Review 
Committee, Unified Land Development Code Review Committee, Finance Advisory and Audit 
Committee, and the Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee. Each 
resolution provides for the composition, term, appointment procedure, removal, etc. To ensure 
consistency and a more efficient procedure, the Town Attorney has drafted Ordinance No. 2024- 
03, an advisory board ordinance that applies to all Town advisory boards, committees, and 
commissions unless otherwise set forth in the Code. 

The ordinance provides uniformity for its advisory boards in composition, quorums, eligibility, 
appointment, terms, removal, vacancies, officers, procedures, and meetings. The ordinance also 
provides the Town Council with the authority to adopt other resolutions (or ordinances) that 
address the particular qualifications for members of each board and the time and frequency of 
meetings. It provides for an application process for potential board members, and the Town 
Council will review the applications and vote on the members and alternates for each board. Board 
members will serve two year staggered terms and will continue to serve until successors are 
appointed. 

Recommendation: 

The Town Council review and discuss proposed Ordinance No. 2024-04 regarding Town 

Advisory Boards and to make any changes to prepare the ordinance for first reading. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 143 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 144 of 187



 

1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA ADOPTING CHAPTER 2 

“ADMINISTRATION”, ARTICLE VII “TOWN ADVISORY BOARDS” TO 

PROVIDE FOR APPLICABILITY, COMPOSITION, QUORUM, 

ELIGIBILITY, QUALIFICATIONS, APPOINTMENT, TERMS, 

REMOVAL, VACANCIES, OFFICERS, COMPENSATION, AND 

PROCEDURES REGARDING TOWN ADVISORY BOARDS; 

REORGANIZATION AND REVISIONS TO CHAPTER 34 PLANNING 

AND DEVELOPMENT TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH NEW TOWN 

ADVISORY BOARD ARTICLE AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves wishes to adopt an 

ordinance to address its advisory boards, including but not limited to their composition, 

qualifications, appointment, terms, removal, and vacancies; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Town wishes to ensure that all Town advisory boards comply with the 

new ordinance and that advisory board provisions throughout the Town’s Code of Ordinances and 

Unified Land Development Regulations are consistent with the same; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town to adopt this 

Ordinance and that said Ordinance serves a public purpose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

 

Section 1: That the foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 2. The Town Council for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby adopts Chapter 

2 “Administration”, Article VII “Town Advisory Boards” as follows: 

  

ARTICLE VII. – TOWN ADVISORY BOARDS 

 

Sec. 2-180. - Applicability.   

(a)  Unless otherwise provided for in this Code, all town advisory boards, committees and 

commissions (collectively, hereinafter “advisory board” or “board”) shall comply with the 

provisions set forth in this Article.  To the extent permitted by law, this Article shall also apply to 

the planning and zoning board. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 145 of 187



 

2 

 

(b) All meetings, records, and files of advisory boards shall be open and available to the public, 

as required by Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, Chapter 286, Florida Statutes, and any other 

applicable law. 

(c) Pursuant to section 120-005 of the town’s Unified Land Development Code, Article 120 

“Quasi-Judicial Hearings” shall apply to all town advisory boards which hold quasi-judicial 

hearings. 

(d) All advisory board members shall be subject to applicable sections of Chapter 112, Florida 

Statutes, Palm Beach County Code of Ethics, and Town of Loxahatchee Groves Code of Ethics 

for Public Officers set forth in Chapter 2 “Administration,” Article III “Officers and Employees,”  

Division 2 “Code of Ethics.” 

Sec. 2-181. - Composition; quorum.  

(a) Town advisory boards shall be comprised of five members.  All members shall be 

appointed in accordance with the procedures set forth in section 2-183. 

(b) Three members in attendance at a meeting shall constitute a quorum of the advisory board, 

and official action shall be taken by the board by a majority vote of the members present. 

(c) In its discretion, the town council may provide, by resolution or ordinance, that a particular 

advisory board will be composed of fewer than five members.  A quorum for such a board shall 

be equal to the majority of the members of the board. 

Sec. 2-182. - Eligibility and qualifications of town advisory board members.  

Unless otherwise provided for in this Code or the Florida Statutes, as may be amended from time 

to time, all members of the advisory boards shall be residents and registered voters of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves.  The town council may, by resolution or ordinance, adopt qualifications 

specific to the particular board. The town council shall be the sole judge of the qualifications of its 

advisory board members and may delegate to staff the verification of each proposed appointee’s 

qualifications. 

Sec. 2-183. - Appointment process.   

Each member of the town council shall nominate a qualified individual to each advisory board, 

and staff shall prepare a resolution to appoint all such nominees as required by Section 4, 

subsection (7) of the charter. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 146 of 187



 

3 

 

Sec. 2-184. - Terms of appointees; removal; vacancy. 

(a) Each member appointed to an advisory board shall serve an unspecified term but no longer 

than concurrent with the term of the appointing member of the town council.  

(b) Advisory board members shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing member of town 

council and the town council. Advisory board members may be removed without cause by the 

appointing member of town council. Advisory board members may also be removed with cause 

by a majority vote of the members of the town council present at any publicly noticed meeting for 

inefficiency, neglect of duty or misconduct in office only after a hearing before town council and 

only if the advisory board member has been given a copy of the charges at least ten (10) days prior 

to the hearing and has had an opportunity to be heard in person or by counsel.  Staff will notify 

applicable town council members regarding their respective appointee’s absence from any 

advisory board meetings. 

(c) An advisory board member will automatically forfeit his or her position: (i) if convicted of 

a felony while a member of the board; (ii) if he or she has three consecutive absences; or (iii) he 

or she is no longer a resident of the town. 

(d) In the event of a vacancy on an advisory board, the member of town council whose 

appointment is vacant shall appoint a replacement for the unexpired term in the same manner as 

provided in section 2-183.  

Sec. 2-185. - Officers. 

Each advisory board shall have a chairperson and vice-chairperson and such other officers as the 

board shall deem necessary.  Unless otherwise provided for herein, officers of the board shall be 

elected by a majority vote of the membership of the board at its first meeting after the members’ 

initial appointments, and annually thereafter.  A member of the board may be elected to serve as 

an officer without restriction as to the number of terms served. 

Sec. 2-186. - Compensation.  

Advisory board members shall serve without compensation.  If authorized by the town council, 

reasonable expenses which are incurred in the performance of their duties may be reimbursed to 

the members.  The payment of such expenses shall be in accordance with Chapter 112, Florida 

Statutes and any applicable town policy. 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 147 of 187



 

4 

 

Section 2-187. - Procedures; meetings; agendas; decisions; staff; attorney. 

(a) Each board shall conduct its business in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order and any 

applicable rules of procedure adopted by resolution of the town council. The actions, decisions, 

and recommendations of each board shall be advisory only. 

(b) Each board shall meet on an as-needed basis, as determined by the town council or the 

town manager. 

(c) Each board shall have an official agenda for its regular meetings which shall determine 

the matters of business to be considered at each meeting and the order in which such items shall 

be presented.  Preparation of the agenda shall be the responsibility of the town manager.  

(d) Decisions of the board shall be determined by motions duly made and seconded and 

carried by a majority vote of the members present.  Minutes shall be kept of all meetings and 

proceedings and shall include and state the vote of each member on each question.  The motion 

shall state the reason upon which it is made, and such reason shall be based upon the prescribed 

guides and standards applicable to the subject matter and/or the particular advisory board.  

Copies of the agenda, together with copies of documents and papers relative thereto, shall be 

made available for review by board members in the town hall as far in advance of the meeting 

as time for preparation will permit. 

(e) The town council or the town manager shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether a 

board requires the services of a secretary to perform such tasks as recording the meeting, taking 

minutes, and preparing the agenda.  Otherwise, the board will select one of its members to perform 

such duties. 

(f) The town attorney will provide legal representation to an advisory board at the request of 

the town manager. 

Section 2-188. - Advisory board resolutions, ordinances. 

Resolutions regarding advisory boards that remain in effect as of the date of the adoption of this 

ordinance shall remain valid but only as to those provisions not in conflict with this article.  The 

town council may adopt resolutions or ordinances from time to time to address specific 

qualifications, duties, or other desired provisions for individual town advisory boards as long as 

such resolutions do not conflict with this article. 

Section 3. The Town Council for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby reorganizes, and 

amends Chapter 34 “Planning and Development” as follows: 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 148 of 187



 

5 

 

 

Chapter 34 – PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

ARTICLE I. – IN GENERAL 

Sec.  34-1. – Reserved.Designation of the planning and zoning board the as local planning agency 

and the town council as the land development regulation commission.   

(a) The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby designates the planning 

and zoning board as the local planning agency for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves pursuant to 

F.S. § 163.3174(1). A nonvoting representative of the School District of Palm Beach County 

shall also be included in the town's land planning agency for the purpose of reviewing 

applications that would increase the residential density of the subject property pursuant to F.S. 

§ 163.3174(1). 

(b) The town council will continue to serve as the land development regulation commission, 

as defined in F.S. § 163.3164, for the town. 

(c) The planning and zoning board shall have the authority to hear and make 

recommendations on rezoning applications. 

(d) The planning and zoning board shall have the authority to hear and make 

recommendations on Unified Land Development Code amendments but, as of the effective date 

of this ordinance, only upon referral of such proposed amendments by the town council.  

 

* * * 

ARTICLE II. – LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY; LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION 

COMMISSION; AND PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 

Sec. 34-25. – Designations and general authority.  

(a)  As of October 13, 2019, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

designated the planning and zoning board as the local planning agency for the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves pursuant to F.S. § 163.3174(1). A nonvoting representative of the School 

District of Palm Beach County shall also be included in the town's local planning agency for the 

purpose of reviewing applications that would increase the residential density of the subject 

property pursuant to F.S. § 163.3174(1).  Failure of the School District to make such appointment 

after notice from the Town and/or the failure of the appointed School District representative to 

Commented [J1]: FYI:  Subsections (a) and (b) were taken from 

Section 34-1 other than the new addition of “October 13, 2019” 
(date prior ordinance was adopted) and some minor grammatical 

changes. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 149 of 187



6 

attend agency meetings shall not be deemed a failure of the Town to comply with this 

requirement nor shall it delay the agency’s authority to take official action.  Pursuant to F.S. § 

163.3174(1), the Town will provide opportunities for involvement by applicable community 

college boards by inviting each board to send a representative to attend agency meetings and 

make comments on appropriate items. 

(b) The town council will continue to serve as the land development regulation commission,

as defined in F.S. § 163.3164. 

Sec. 34-25. - Composition and term of office. 

(a) The planning and zoning board shall be composed of five members, and two

alternate members placed in office in accordance with the following procedure: 

(1) Each member of the town council shall nominate a qualified person for

appointment to the planning and zoning board by the town council, to serve one-

year terms. 

(2) Two alternate members, designated as Alternate No. 1 and Alternate No. 2,

shall be appointed by the town council each year to serve one-year terms. 

Alternate members may participate in all matters that come before the board at 

meetings at which they attend. However, alternate members may only vote as 

members of the board, in their designated order, whenever any regular member 

of the board is absent. 

(b) Members of the planning and zoning board shall be appointed from the residents

of the town who shall be knowledgeable concerning the functions of municipal 

government, planning and zoning matters and municipal development, as well as, 

from professions associated with development, including, without limitation, 

architects, planners, attorneys, engineers, and contractors, however, the town 

council may appoint one member, including alternates, who is a non-resident 

landowner. Board members shall hold no other town office or position. 

(c) Three members of the planning and zoning board who are in attendance shall

constitute a quorum for purposes of convening a meeting and transacting the 

business at hand. 

(d) Vacancies on the planning and zoning board shall be filled by appointment by the

town council for the unexpired term of the membership vacated. Nomination for 

Commented [J2]: FYI: Except for the qualifications set forth in 

subsection (b) (moved to Section 34-26(a)), subsections (a) through 

(g) were removed because the new advisory board article addresses 
these provisions. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 150 of 187



 

7 

 

such appointment shall be made by the council member who nominated the 

vacating board member; except that if an alternate member should vacate his 

position, any member of the town council may nominate a qualified person for 

appointment to such position, which must be approved by the town council. 

(e) The town council shall have the authority to remove any member of the planning 

and zoning board from his office for cause whenever, after due notice of hearing 

at a regular or special meeting of the town council, a majority of the council votes 

for such removal. Causes for removal shall include absence from two consecutive 

board meetings without valid excuse as determined by the planning and zoning 

board. 

(f) Compensation. The members of the planning board shall serve without 

compensation but shall be reimbursed for any expenses authorized by the town 

council, which may be incurred in the performance of their duties. 

(g) Organizational meeting. The initial organizational meeting of the board shall 

occur at the first meeting of the board following the appointment of board 

members by the town council. Thereafter, the board meeting in May of each year 

shall be designated an organizational meeting for the purpose of electing a 

chairman and vice-chair, who shall be elected for terms of one year by the board 

from its membership. 

Sec. 34-26. – Provisions particular to the planning and zoning board. Business meetings and 

procedures. 

(a) The conduct of planning and zoning board business and holding of hearings shall be 

governed by Robert’s Rules of Order and such other rules of procedure as the town council may 

determine to be necessary.  Qualifications. Members of the planning and zoning board shall be 

knowledgeable concerning the functions of municipal government, planning and zoning matters 

and municipal development, as well as have professions associated with development, including, 

without limitation, architects, planners, attorneys, engineers, and contractors.  Board members 

shall hold no other town office or position; however, this does not preclude the board member 

from participating on another Town advisory board. 

(b) Meetings. The board shall meet once each month for the transaction of its business, 

provided that a meeting may be cancelled by the town manager when no business is pending.  

Commented [J3]: FYI: This language was taken from Section 

34-25(b). 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 151 of 187



 

8 

 

Special meetings may be called by the town manager when, in the opinion of the town manager, 

there are conditions of such urgency as to justify a special meeting, provided that at least 48 

hours’ notice shall be given each member prior to the time set for such special meeting and that 

any statutory or town code notice timeframes are met.  The board may schedule additional 

meetings as it deems necessary to conduct its business, training and other related matters. 

(c) Staff.  The town’s planner shall advise and assist the board in all of its presentations, 

hearings, and deliberations on matters pertinent and relative thereto.  The board, through its 

chairman, may call upon any department, agency, or officer of the town for information or advice 

in the promotion of its work. 

Sec. 34-27. - Administrative assistance. 

(a) The town manager shall provide such staff and clerical assistance as the planning and 

zoning board may require for the reasonable performance of its duties, including a 

recording secretary. The town's planner shall advise and assist the board in all of its 

presentations, hearings, and deliberations on matters pertinent and relative thereto. 

(b) The board, through its chairman, may call upon any department, agency, or officer of 

the town for information or advice in the promotion of its work. 

(c) The town attorney shall provide legal representation to the board at the request of the 

town manager. 

Sec. 34-278. - Powers and duties. 

(a) The planning and zoning board shall hear and make recommendations to the town council 

as to findings of fact on applications for: 

(1) Rezoning applicants. 

(2) Zoning ordinance amendments. 

(3) Site plans. 

(4) Conditional uses. 

(5) Special exceptions permitted within each zoning district. 

(6) Variances. 

(7) Administrative appeals. 

(8) Special permits and nonconforming uses. 

Commented [J4]: FYI: This language comes from Section 34-27 
which was deleted. 

Commented [J5]: FYI: This sentence was deleted because the 

new advisory board article addresses the use of staff.  The remainder 

of Section 34-27(a) and (b) were moved to Section 34-26, and 34-

27(c) was moved to Section 2-187 because it applies to all advisory 
boards. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 152 of 187



 

9 

 

(9) Any other planning or zoning related matter referred to it by the town council. 

(b)  After hearing any of the above applications, the board may recommend appropriate 

conditions, restrictions, limitations and safeguards it deems necessary, consistent with applicable 

law. 

(c) The planning and zoning board shall have the authority to hear and make 

recommendations on Unified Land Development Code amendments but, as of October 13, 2019, 

only upon referral of such proposed amendments by the town council. 

(c)(d) The board shall perform such other duties and special assignments as may be directed by 

the town council. 

Sec. 34-29. - Planning and zoning board advisory only. 

The actions, decisions and recommendations of the planning and zoning board shall not be final 

or binding on the town council but shall be advisory only. 

Section 4: Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

Section 5: Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 6: Codification. It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of 

the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of 

this ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

Section 7:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing ordinance on first reading.  

Councilmember                                    seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows:  

         Aye       Nay     Absent 

________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 

________________, VICE MAYOR    □   □     □ 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 153 of 187



 

10 

 

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 

___________ 2024. 

 

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing ordinance on second reading.  

Councilmember                                    seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows:  

         Aye       Nay     Absent 

________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 

________________, VICE MAYOR    □   □     □ 

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS  

___   DAY OF __________ 2024. 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA  

 

ATTEST:                ______________________________ 

      Mayor  

 

_____________________________  ______________________________            

Town Clerk               Vice Mayor  

        

      ______________________________                                                     

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: Councilmember  

    

                                ______________________________ 

Office of the Town Attorney                     Councilmember  

 

                 ______________________________ 

      Councilmember  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 154 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

   Item No. 13 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Town Attorney’s Office 

VIA: Francine L. Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024  

SUBJECT: Discussion on Rules of Procedure 

Background: 

At its regular meeting on March 5, 2024, Town Council directed staff to bring back proposed 
changes to its Rules of Procedure. The Town’s adopted Rules of Procedure are in Sections 2-22 
and 2-23 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances (adopted in 2008) and supplemented by the Town 
Council Rules of Order and Procedure that were adopted by Resolution No. 2019-65. Town 
Council also adopted Resolution No. 2015-18, which sets out the Rules of Procedure for 
Advisory Boards. 

The proposed revisions to Sections 2-22 and 2-23 of the Code are presented in Ordinance format 
and include: 

• Moving language related to special meetings from Section 2-23(l) to Section 2-22(c)
• Modifying Section 2-23(b) to acknowledge rules of procedure adopted by Resolution of

Town Council
• Modifying Section 2-23(e) to allow the time of Town Council meetings to be set by

Resolution of Town Council
• Modifying Section 2-23(g) to change “citizen requests” to “public comment” and provide

for the rules related to public comment to be adopted by Resolution of Town Council
• Modifying Section 2-23(k) to clarify how the Code applies to advisory boards

The proposed revisions to Town Council’s Rules of Order and Procedure are presented using 
strikethrough and underline where the struck-through language is proposed for deletion and the 
underlined language is proposed for addition and include: 

• Modifying Rule 2 regarding the time of meetings, correcting the time meetings start,
deleting inconsistent language regarding continuation of meetings, and adding language
deleted from Section 2-23(e) of the Code regarding items not considered during a meeting
due to time constraints

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 155 of 187



 
155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

• Modifying Rule 7 regarding public comment, requiring a comment card be submitted, 
stating that written comments will not be read into the record, adding a prohibition on 
politicking, a portion of paragraph 7.5 was moved to 7.7 to accommodate this addition 

• Modifying Rule 16 regarding Council Member comments, allowing for official action to 
be taken upon consent of Council, adding a prohibition on politicking 

The Rules of Procedure for Advisory Boards are amended to add a prohibition on politicking. 

Recommendation: 

Move that Town Council review the proposed revisions and give staff direction. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 156 of 187



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 2 
“ADMINISTRATION”, ARTICLE II “TOWN COUNCIL” TO 
REORGANIZE ITS PROVISIONS, TO PROVIDE FOR ADOPTION BY 
RESOLUTION OF SUPPLEMENTAL RULES OF PROCEDURE, 
DECORUM, AND ORDER FOR MEETINGS OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 
AND TOWN BOARDS, AND TO REPLACE REFERENCES TO CITIZEN 
REQUESTS WITH REFERENCES TO PUBLIC COMMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 5 of Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, authorizes 

the Town Council to determine times and places and its own rules and order of business for the 

conduct of meetings of the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Article II of the Code of Ordinances provides rules of procedure, 

decorum, and order for meetings of the Town Council and Town boards; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend Chapter 2, Article II, to remove outdated 

provisions and provide for the adoption by resolution of supplemental rules of procedure, decorum, 

and order; and   

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town to adopt this 

Ordinance and that said Ordinance serves a public purpose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1: That the foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2: The Town Council for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby amends Chapter 

2 “Administration”, Article II “Town Council” as follows: 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 157 of 187



Sec. 2-22. - Special meetings of town council. 

(a) The town clerk shall, at the request of the mayor or on written request of three or more council 
members, call special meetings of the town council by notifying, in writing, or otherwise, all 
of the members of the town council that a special meeting has been called and supplying said 
members with the time, date and place thereof. 

(b) Except in cases of an emergency meeting, notification supplied to each town council member 
and the public, pursuant to this section, whether in writing or otherwise, must be received at 
least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of said special meeting. 

(c) Special meetings of the town council shall be called solely for specific and stated purposes 
only. It is the intention of the town council that no items shall be added to a special meeting 
agenda other than those items for which the meeting was called. 

Sec. 2-23. Town council meetings generally. 

(a) Ground rules for behavior of members of the town council. The following shall constitute the 
guidelines for behavior to be adhered to by members of the town council in their respective 
roles as elected public officers of the town:  
(1) Members of the town council shall:  

a. Forgive each other;  
b. Each conduct themselves with dignity;  
c. Agree to disagree with each other; and  
d. Show respect for the points of view of other members of the town council.  

(2) Members of the town council shall not:  
a. Falsely accuse another member of the town council of wrongdoing;  
b. Criticize each other in a rancorous or unprofessional manner;  
c. Make personal attacks on another member of the town council; or  
d. Individually act without the support of the town council.  

(b) Procedures and scope. 
(1) The Charter of the town provides that the town council may determine its own rules of 

procedure. All other municipal meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the 
procedural requirements as established by resolution of the town council or, if no 
resolution exists or it is silent on a matter of procedure, Roberts Rules of Order shall 
apply, said rules of order being incorporated into this section by reference.  

(2) The town council, the town manager, the town clerk, and the public shall be governed 
by the terms, conditions, and provisions of this section as the basis and framework for 
procedures of the town council as well as any supplemental rules of procedure, decorum, 
and order adopted by resolution of town council. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 158 of 187



(3) Members of the town council and other public officers attending or participating in any 
regular or special meeting of the town council shall abide by the standards of conduct 
and values set forth in the Town of Loxahatchee Groves Code of Ethics for Public 
Officers.  

(c) Agenda. The town clerk shall prepare the agenda for each town council meeting. Citizens 
requesting to address the town council may be scheduled on the agenda by giving to the town 
clerk's office their name, address, phone number and subject on which they wish to address 
the town council pursuant to subsection (f) of this section.  

(d) Duties and responsibilities of mayor. 
(1) The mayor or presiding officer at any regular or special meeting of the town council 

shall only introduce agenda items by the agenda item number and the brief title as listed 
on the agenda with no further explanation or comment. Thereafter, the mayor or 
presiding officer may call on the town manager, and the town manager or his designee 
shall furnish a brief explanation of the item under consideration. The item shall then be 
opened for public hearing or discussion by the town council as required for the particular 
item under the time limits imposed by this section.  

(2) Any comments or questions by the attending public shall be directed to the mayor or 
presiding officer. Members of the town council shall direct all comments and questions 
on the subject matter being discussed to the mayor or presiding officer only and shall not 
engage in cross conversations with other members of the public or direct any questions 
to other members of the town council or to the public. The mayor or presiding officer 
shall not unreasonably withhold or delay recognition of any member of the town council 
desiring to speak. The mayor or presiding officer shall recognize other members of the 
town council in rotation and not call on any member a second and subsequent time until 
such time as all members of the town council shall have had the opportunity to speak.  

(3) If the mayor or presiding officer desires to participate in a discussion, he shall do so only 
when the speaking member of the town council has relinquished the floor. The mayor or 
presiding officer shall not interrupt a speaking member of the town council for the 
purpose of comment.  

(4) The mayor or presiding officer shall not use his power as chair to dominate debate or 
discussion, nor shall the mayor or presiding officer unreasonably cut short or prolong 
any debate, discussion, or taking of a vote.  

(5) Motions to change the order of business shall require a majority vote of the town council.  
(6) A member of the town council may not reintroduce any discussion item that has failed 

due to lack of second for at least six months after the motion failed, unless either an 
emergency exists and the public business requires reconsideration of the item, or a 
member of the town council who was on the prevailing side of the prior vote, introduces 
the discussion item for reconsideration.  

(7) The mayor or presiding officer, in consultation with the town attorney, shall make rulings 
on parliamentary procedure. At least three votes of members of the town council are 
required to overrule the mayor or presiding officer on rulings of parliamentary 
procedure.  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 159 of 187



(8) The mayor or presiding officer may, during town council proceedings, request that the 
town council move on to the next item on the meeting agenda by voting or otherwise.  

(e) Time of meetings. All regularly scheduled meetings of the town council shall begin at such 
time as is established by resolution of the town council. no later than 7:00 p.m. and shall end 
on or about 11:00 p.m. By majority vote of those present, the town council may extend the 
length of the council meeting. Agenda items scheduled but not considered during a meeting 
shall be automatically set over by the town clerk to the next town council meeting or may be 
considered at a special meeting called for that purpose in the manner provided herein. In 
setting matters over to the next meeting or a special meeting, the town clerk is directed to take 
into consideration all notice provisions relative to municipal ordinances and, specifically, F.S. 
§ 166.041.  

(f) Town council discussion. 
(1) Discussion by a member of the town council shall not be limited, unless a motion to limit 

debate is made and adopted. Each member of the town council shall be afforded the 
opportunity to offer rebuttal to each item discussed. A motion to limit debate shall take 
precedence over all motions, except a motion to adjourn, a point of order, or a motion to 
table. The motion to limit debate shall not be debated and, to be adopted, shall require 
an affirmative vote of at least supermajority of the members of the town council present.  

(2) Each member of the town council and the public who desires to speak shall address the 
mayor or presiding officer, and upon recognition by the mayor or presiding officer, shall 
confine himself to the issues under debate, avoiding all personalities and indecorous 
language.  

(3) Members of the town council shall not interrupt anyone who has the floor, unless it is to 
call the meeting to order, or as otherwise provided in this section. If a member of the 
town council desires to direct questions to another member of the town council or the 
public, the questions shall be directed to the mayor or presiding officer who in turn will 
recognize the individual who wishes to answer the specific question. If a member of the 
town council wishes to direct a question to town staff, the question shall be directed to 
the town manager, through the mayor, who will, in turn, recognize such member of town 
staff.  

(4) While the town council is in session, members of the town council and the public present 
at the meeting shall not, by conversation or otherwise, delay or interrupt the proceedings, 
nor the peace of the town council.  

(5) Members of the town council may request that the mayor or presiding officer recess the 
public meeting.  

(g) Citizen requests Public Comments. 
(1) The town council, on each night that a regularly scheduled meeting is to be held, shall 

convene at 7:00 p.m. Citizens requests shall be entertained on or about 8:45 p.m. Any 
citizen desiring to address the town council during this time interval must submit a 
written request to the town clerk prior to 8:45 p.m., but subject nonetheless to the 
discretion of the mayor or presiding officer. Citizen requests will be held in the priority 
order in which they are received by the town clerk.  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 160 of 187



(2) Each request shall succinctly detail the matter to be brought before the town council, and 
shall contain the name, address, and phone number where the citizen can be reached if 
the need arises; and shall be dated and signed by the citizen.  

(3) Subject to the waiver rule contained within this section, public discussion comments by 
individual citizens shall be limited to three minutes during the citizens request period. 
The town clerk shall be charged with the responsibility of notifying each citizen 30 
seconds before said time shall elapse and when said time limit has expired.  

(h) Waiver of rules. By majority vote, the town council may invite citizen discussion on any 
agenda item and thereby waive the proscriptions otherwise outlined in the section or in any 
resolution adopted pursuant to subsection 2-23(g)(2). In every case where a citizen is 
recognized by the mayor to discuss an agenda item, the citizen shall step to the podium, state 
his name and address for the benefit of the town clerk, and identify any group or organization 
he represents. The citizen shall then succinctly state his position regarding the item before the 
town council.  

(i) Decorum to be maintained. Order shall be maintained at each town council meeting and the 
mayor is hereby empowered to order from the room any citizen who refuses to comply with 
the rules and regulations outlined in this section.  
(1) It shall be unlawful for any individual or member of the town council to disturb or disrupt 

a meeting of the town council or refuse to obey the orders of the mayor or presiding 
officer in the conduct of the meeting. Any individual or member of the town council who 
causes a disturbance of the meeting shall be warned by the mayor or presiding officer 
or, alternatively, by a majority vote of the town council, with dispatch, that the conduct 
is interfering or disturbing the order of the meeting and shall be given the opportunity to 
cease the conduct constituting an interruption or disturbance. If, after sufficient warning, 
the individual or member of the town council fails to cease the offending conduct and 
continues to interrupt or disturb the meeting, the individual or member of the town 
council shall be removed from the meeting by an authorized law enforcement officer or 
his authorized agent in attendance at the meeting if so directed by the mayor or presiding 
officer. Once removed, the individual or member of the town council shall be barred 
from further audience for the remainder of the meeting.  

(2) In the event the mayor or presiding officer shall fail to act, any member of the town 
council may move to require the mayor or presiding officer to act to enforce the rules of 
this section, and the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the town council 
present at that time shall require the mayor or presiding officer to act.  

(3) If the audience or a part thereof becomes unruly, the mayor is empowered to either recess 
or adjourn the meeting.  

(4) Any individual or member of the town council who, at a town council or board meeting, 
willfully interrupts or disturbs such meeting in violation of F.S. § 871.01, entitled 
"Disturbing Schools and Religious and Other Assemblies," is subject to arrest by those 
law enforcement officers present. No action by the mayor or presiding officer is required 
for a law enforcement officer to enforce F.S. § 871.01. The mayor and town council shall 
be guided by the following definitions/elements of disturbance under the aforementioned 
statute:  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 161 of 187



a. To commit an offense under F.S. § 871.01, a person must have deliberately acted 
to create a disturbance. That is, he must act with the intention that his behavior 
impede the successful functioning of the assembly in which he has intervened, or 
with reckless disregard of the effect of his behavior;  

b. The acts complained of must be such that a reasonable person would expect them 
to be disruptive; and  

c. The acts must, in fact, significantly disturb the assembly.  
(5) In addition to any other remedy provided by law, a violation of this subsection (i) may 

be prosecuted as a municipal ordinance violation through the issuance of a notice to 
appear, served on the violator as set forth in Rule 3.125, Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, 
as amended from time to time.  

(j) Expression of opinion. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit any member of the public 
from expressing their opinions outside of a public meeting or by expressing their opinions in 
written form to the town council.  

(k) Application to town boards. All references in this section to "town council" shall also mean 
the The provisions of this section also apply to the various town boards provided for in this 
Code or created by the town council. Town council may adopt by resolution supplemental 
rules of procedure, decorum and order that apply to town boards.  

(l) Special meetings. Special meetings of the town council shall be called solely for specific and 
stated purposes only. It is the intention of the town council that no items shall be added to a 
special meeting agenda other than those items for which the meeting was called.  
Section 3: Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

Section 4: Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5: Codification. It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of 

the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of 

this ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 162 of 187



Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing ordinance on first reading.  

Councilmember                                    seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the 

vote was as follows:  

         Aye       Nay     Absent 

_________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 
_________________, VICE MAYOR   □   □     □ 
_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  
_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 
_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
___________ 2024. 
 
Councilmember                                      offered the foregoing ordinance on second reading.  

Councilmember                                    seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 

was as follows:  

         Aye       Nay     Absent 

________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 
________________, VICE MAYOR    □   □     □ 
________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  
________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 
________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS  
___   DAY OF __________ 2024. 
  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 163 of 187



 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA  

 
ATTEST:                ______________________________ 
      Mayor  
 
_____________________________  ______________________________            
Town Clerk               Vice Mayor  
        
      ______________________________                                                     
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: Councilmember  
    
                                ______________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney                     Councilmember  
 
                 ______________________________ 
      Councilmember  
 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 164 of 187



Page 1 of 7  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE 

Adopted   
 
 

Rule 1. Public Meetings. 
1.1 All Town Council meetings shall be open to the public except as otherwise 

provided by law. 
 

Rule 2. Regular Meetings. 
2.1 The Town Council shall meet the first Tuesday of each month at 7 6:30 p.m. in 

Town Hall. The meeting shall not be continued to the next day except due to 
special circumstances or an emergency. This date may be changed from time 
to time as needed by a majority vote of the Town Council. In order to continue 
a meeting beyond 10:30 p.m. a majority of the Council must approve by vote 
and to continue the meeting for each ½ hour thereafter must be approved by a 
majority of the Council.  Agenda items scheduled but not considered during a 
meeting shall be automatically set over by the town clerk to the next town 
council meeting or may be considered at a special meeting called for that 
purpose in the manner provided herein. In setting matters over to the next 
meeting or a special meeting, the town clerk is directed to take into 
consideration all notice provisions relative to municipal ordinances and, 
specifically, F.S. § 166.041.   

 
2.2 The Town Clerk or designee shall prepare the agenda, notices, and package 

materials for the meetings as required by Florida law. 
 

Rule 3. Special Meetings 
3.1 A Special Meeting may be called by the Mayor or a majority of the Town Council 

as necessary. The Town Clerk or designee shall prepare the agenda, notices, 
and package materials for the meetings as required by Florida law. Such 
notification shall be given no less than 72 hours before commencement of the 
special meeting and shall state the time, place, and subject of the meeting. In 
the event a Council Member, preferable in writing, requests a special 
meeting, the Town Manager shall, as soon as practicable, confer with the 
Mayor and then Council members to determine if a special meeting should 
be scheduled. 

 
3.2 The Mayor, Town Manager, or a majority of the Council Members may call an 

Emergency Town Council meeting when a sudden, urgent event or situation 
arises necessitating immediate action and judgment. The Town Clerk or 
designee shall post the agenda and notify each Town Council Member, the 
Town Manager, and Town Attorney immediately. Such notification shall be 
given as soon as practicable before commencement of the meeting and shall 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 165 of 187



Page 2 of 7  

state the time, place, and subject of the meeting. In the event a Council 
Member, preferable in writing, requests an emergency meeting, the Town 
Manager shall, as soon as practicable, confer with the Mayor and then 
Council members to determine if an emergency meeting should be 
scheduled. 

 
Rule 4. Adjourned Meeting A Town Council session may be adjourned or continued 
from day to day or for more than one day, but the adjournment shall not be extended 
beyond the next regular meeting. 

 
Rule 5. Presiding Officer 
5.1 The Mayor shall preside at Town Council meetings and shall be recognized as 

head of the Town government for ceremonial purposes and by the Governor for 
martial law purposes. 

 
5.2 The Vice-Mayor shall act as Mayor during the absence or disability of the Mayor 

and if a vacancy in the office of the mayor occurs, shall become interim Mayor 
until a Mayor is selected by a majority vote of the Council at the next regular 
council meeting. 

 
5.3 In the absence of the Mayor and Vice-Mayor the Council member with the most 

seniority shall act as the Presiding Officer. In the event there is more than one 
Council member with the most seniority the Council members shall select the 
Presiding Officer. 

 
Rule 6. Corporate Seal The duly appointed Town Clerk shall keep in custody the 
Town’s corporate seal and ensure its proper and lawful use on behalf of the Town. No 
person shall use the Town Seal for a purpose other than official Town business. 

Rule 7. Presentations & Public Comment 
7.1 Town Council meetings are business meetings of the Council and the right to 

limit discussion rests with the Council. 
 

7.2 Except as otherwise set forth in these Rules, persons who make a presentation 
to the Town Council must limit the duration of their presentation to 15 minutes. 
Exceptions may be granted by the Presiding Officer. 

 
7.3 Public Comments made by a member of the public will be limited to one time 

per subject matter for a total of three minutes. Exceptions may be granted by 
the Presiding Officer. Individuals addressing the Council on the same topic as 
an individual who has already spoken should attempt to provide new information 
and not repeat the comments of the previous speakers. Where possible, 
individual grievances should first be taken up with Town Staff before comments 
are made at a Town Council meeting. Persons desiring to speak on a topic shall 
submit a comment card to the Town Clerk. Public Comments received in writing 
will be made part of the record of the meeting but shall not be read aloud. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 166 of 187



Page 3 of 7  

 
7.4 The Town Council may withhold comment or direct the Town Manager to take 

action on requests or comments. 
 

7.5 Each person addressing the Council shall step up to the podium and state 
his/her name and address in an audible tone of voice for the record. All public 
comments must be addressed to the Council as a body and not to individuals. 
Personal verbal attacks upon Council members, staff, and/or members of the 
public will not be tolerated. Any person making impertinent obscene, personally 
insulting, defamatory, or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous or 
disruptive while addressing the Council shall be barred by the presiding officer 
from speaking further, unless permission to continue or again address the 
Council is granted by a majority vote of the Council members present. 

 
7.6 Each person addressing the Council should refrain from advocating the election 

or defeat of a candidate for public office, either partisan or non-partisan: (1.) 
through the use of words, dates, signs, props and/or wearing apparel that 
convey a message of express advocacy for a person or group of persons; or 
(2) through comments that, when taken as a whole, can only be interpreted as 
advocating the election or defeat of one or more identified candidates. 

 

7.7 Any person making impertinent obscene, personally insulting, defamatory, or 
slanderous remarks, who is advocating the election or defeat of a candidate, or 
who becomes boisterous or disruptive while addressing the Council shall be 
barred by the presiding officer from speaking further, unless permission to 
continue or again address the Council is granted by a majority vote of the 
Council members present. 

 
Rule 8. Decorum and Order 
8.1 The presiding officer shall preserve decorum and order and decide all questions 

of order subject to the Council’s appeal. 
 

8.2 During all meetings of the Town Council, Council members must preserve order 
and decorum and a Council member shall neither by conversation or otherwise, 
delay or interrupt the proceeding or the peace of the Council nor disturb any 
Council member while speaking, or refuse to obey the rules of the Council or its 
Presiding Officer, except as otherwise provided herein. 

 
8.3 No member of the public shall, during a Council meeting, make or cause to be 

made any disruptive noise or sound, or display any sign or graphic material of 
any kind in the Council Chambers, except in connection with a presentation 
made to the Council by a speaker at the podium. 

8.4 The presiding officer shall have the authority to recess a meeting in order to re-
establish the decorum of the meeting. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 167 of 187



Page 4 of 7  

8.5 The Town Council is committed to maintaining civility in public and political 
discourse and expects the public to do the same. All comments by members of 
the Council, advisory board members, staff, and/or the public shall respect the 
right of all citizens in our community to hold different opinions; avoid rhetoric 
intended to humiliate or question the wisdom of those whose opinions are 
different from ours; strive to understand differing perspectives; be truthful, not 
accusatory and avoid distortion; and avoid violence, prejudice and incivility 
towards citizens, employees, and officials of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves. 

 
8.6 If it becomes necessary, the Presiding Officer may recuse the meeting in order 

to restore decorum and may request the Sheriff’s Office assist in maintaining 
order and decorum at the meeting. 
 

 
Rule 9. Rules of Debate 
9.1 Sequence of Debate: With the exception of quasi-judicial matters, items before 

the Town Council shall be commenced by presentation of the item by a staff 
member, followed by public comment on the item. Once the presiding officer 
closes public comment, he or she shall call for a motion and a second on the 
item and then open debate by the Council. Once debate has concluded on the 
item, the presiding officer shall call for a vote on the item. A roll call vote may 
be requested by any Council member on any item. 

 
9.2 Presiding Officer May Move, Second & Debate: The Presiding Officer may 

make a motion or second on any item subject only to such limitations of debate 
as are imposed by these rules on all Council members and shall not be deprived 
of any of the rights and privileges of a Council member by reason of the Council 
member acting as the Presiding Officer. 

 
9.3 Responsibility of Presiding Officer: The Presiding Officer has the responsibility 

of controlling and expediting debate. A Council member who has been 
recognized to speak on a question has a right to the undivided attention of the 
Council. The Presiding Officer responsibility is to keep the subject clearly before 
the Council members, to rule out irrelevant discussion, and to restate the 
question whenever necessary. 

 
9.4 All Members Shall Vote: No member of the Council who is present at any 

meeting of the Council at which an official decision, ruling or other official action 
is to be taken or adopted may abstain from voting in regard to such decision, 
ruling or act and a vote shall be recorded or counted for each such member 
present, except when, with respect to any such Council member, there is a 
conflict of interest under the provisions of Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. In such 
cases, such Council member shall comply with the disclosure requirements of 
Section 112.313, Florida Statutes. 

 
9.5 Getting the Floor; Improper References to be Avoided: Every Council member 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 168 of 187



Page 5 of 7  

desiring to speak shall address the Presiding Officer and upon recognition by 
the Presiding Officer, shall confine comments to the item under debate, 
avoiding all personalities and indecorous language. 

 
9.6 Interruptions: A Council member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted 

when speaking except to call the Council member to order or as herein 
otherwise provided. If a Council member while speaking is called to order, said 
Council member shall cease speaking until the question of order is determined, 
and if in order, the Council member shall be permitted to proceed. 

 
9.7 Withdrawal of Motions: Any motion before the Council may be withdrawn at any 

time prior to a vote being taken thereon by the Council member making such 
motion, upon agreement by the Council member seconding said motion to 
withdraw the second. 

 
9.8 Amending of Motions: At any time during discussion of a motion on the floor, a 

motion to amend said motion may be made. If the amending motion is 
seconded, the Council shall at the conclusion of discussion, first vote on the 
amending motion and then vote upon the original motion in its amended form. 
An amending motion may be withdrawn in the same manner as set forth in sub-
paragraph 9.7 above. 
 

9.9  Motion to Reconsider: A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Council 
may be made only during the meeting that such action was taken. Such motion 
must be made by one of the Council members on the prevailing side, but may 
be seconded by any Council member. The motion to reconsider may be made 
at any time and have precedence over all other motions. Nothing herein 
contained shall be construed to prevent any member of the Council from making 
or remaking the same or any other motion at a subsequent meeting of the 
Council. If a meeting is continued to a second night, that is the next day, 
then this shall be deemed to be part of the initial meeting. 

 
Rule 10. Appointments to the Council and Boards & Committees 
10.1 Vacancies on the Town Council or any Board or Committee of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves shall be announced on the Town Council agenda, and on 
the Town website. All interested persons shall submit a letter of interest and 
resume to the Town Clerk by the deadline stated in the announcement. The 
Town Clerk shall determine whether or not the interested person is a qualified 
elector of the Town and submit that information to the Town Council. 

 
10.2 To fill a vacancy on the Town Council, the Town Council shall vote by ballot. 

The Town Clerk shall prepare the ballots, listing the qualified candidates that 
submitted a letter of interest and resume by the stated deadline. The Town 
Council may, by majority vote of the Council, change the voting process at any 
time. 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 169 of 187



Page 6 of 7  

10.3 To fill a vacancy on any Board or Committee of the Town other than the Town 
Council, the Town Council shall vote on the appointment by motion and second. 

 
Rule 11. Quorum  A majority of the full Council shall constitute a quorum. No ordinance, 
resolution, or motion shall be adopted except by the affirmative vote of at least three 
members of the Town Council. If no quorum exists within fifteen(15) minutes after the 
time designated for the meeting of the Council to commence or if a quorum is lost, the 
Mayor or the Vice Mayor or, in their absence, the Council Member with the most 
seniority, shall adjourn the meeting. The names of the members present and the time 
of adjournment shall be recorded in the minutes by the Clerk. 

 
Rule 12. Absent Member Participation by Telephone Conference 
A member of the Town Council who is absent, with excuse, may participate and vote 
by telephone conference in a Council meeting where there is a physical quorum 
present at the physical meeting site and where the Council determines that 
extraordinary circumstances exist to justify the Council allowing the Member to 
participate by telephone. However, a Council member shall not be allowed to 
participate by phone in a quasi-judicial hearings. 

 
Rule 13. Suspension and Amendment of these Rules 
13.1 Suspension of Rules: Any provision of these rules not governed by the Town 

Charter or Town Code may be temporarily suspended by a vote of a majority of 
the Town Council. 

 
13.2 Amendment of Rules: These rules may be amended, or new rules adopted, by 

a majority vote of the Town Council, provided that the   proposed amendments 
or new rules shall have been introduced into the record. 

 
Rule 14. Preparation/Delivery of Agenda The Town Manager, Town Clerk or 
designee shall prepare the agenda and make every effort to deliver a complete agenda 
kit to the Council Members no later than 5 :00 P.M. on the Wednesday prior to the 
regular meeting. Agenda kits for special and emergency meetings will be distributed 
in as timely a manner as possible. The agenda, as well as lengthy reports and standard 
contracts that are part of the agenda’s back-up documentation, shall be available for 
review in Town Administration. 

 
Rule 15. Special Presentations This is the segment of the meeting where positive 
recognition is expressed. Proclamations are typically presented at the beginning of the 
meeting. Should a Council Member desire a proclamation that will be delivered 
elsewhere, it should be brought up under their comments for Council authorization. A 
proclamation should always “proclaim” a day, week, or month as something specific. 
Certificates of Appreciation and Commendation should be done when honoring an 
individual or accomplishment. Whenever practical, the use of certificates is 
encouraged. 

  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 170 of 187



Page 7 of 7  

 
Rule 16. Council Member Comments  
16. 1: The purpose of Council Member Comments is to promote the public discussion 
 of matters relating to Town business and to encourage the dissemination of 
 information. Any Council Member may submit reports and information on items 
 relating to Town business. When possible, the other Council Members, the Town 
 Manager, and the Town Attorney should receive such materials in advance. 
 Council Members may also request the preparation of proclamations, resolutions, 
 ordinances, reports, and other actions of the Council during this portion of the 
 agenda, subject to majority consensus. All such requests shall be referred to the 
 Manager or the Attorney, as appropriate.  
 
16.2: Official actions may be taken under Council Member Comments comments in 
 the case of an emergency or for other situations necessitating immediate action 
 as may be determined by upon consent by a majority of the Council.  
 
16.3: Council Members should refrain from advocating the election or defeat of a 
 candidate for public office, either partisan or non-partisan: (1.) through the use of 
 words, dates, signs, props and/or wearing apparel that convey a message of 
 express advocacy for a person or group of persons; or (2) through comments 
 that, when taken as a whole, can only be interpreted as advocating the election 
 or defeat of one or more identified candidates. 
 
 
Adopted by Resolution     on  . 

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 171 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 172 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE 
TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 5 of Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, 

authorizes the Town Council to determine times and places and its own rules and order of 

business for the conduct of meetings of the Town Council; and  

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2008-04, the Town Council adopted, in pertinent part, 

Sec. 2-22, Special meetings of Town Council and Sec. 2-23, Town Council meetings generally 

into its Code of Ordinances setting forth some time, place, rules, and order provisions for 

meetings of the Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, in Resolution No. 2019-65, the Town Council repealed Administrative 

Policy 3-13 and adopted in its place certain rules of order and procedure for meetings of the 

Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the aforementioned rules of order 

and procedure should be revised to promote the orderly and efficient conduct of meetings; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the Town Council Rules of Order 

and Procedure adopted by Resolution No. 2019-65 should be repealed and replaced with those 

in the attached Exhibit “A.” 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves, Florida, as follows:  

Section 1.  The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are confirmed and ratified as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 173 of 187



Resolution No. 2024-___ 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Section 2.  The Town Council hereby adopts the Town Council Rules of Order and 

Procedure attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, as supplemental to the rules and procedures in Sec. 

2-22 and 2-23 of the Code of Ordinances.    

Section 3.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held 

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, 

it shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

              Section 5.      This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

Councilmember ____________offered the foregoing resolution. Councilmember 

_______________seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
[Remainder of the page intentionally blank.] 

 
  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 174 of 187



Resolution No. 2024-___ 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

                Aye       Nay     Absent 
 _________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 

_________________, VICE MAYOR   □   □     □ 

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 
ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF APRIL 2024.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA     
    

ATTEST:             
       Mayor  
        
Town Clerk            
       Vice Mayor  
    
              
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Councilmember  
 
              
Office of the Town Attorney    Councilmember  
   
              
       Councilmember 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 175 of 187



 

Resolution No. 2024-___ 

 

Exhibit “A”  
to Resolution No. 2024-       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of the page intentionally blank.] 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 176 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-__ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO PROCEDURES AND 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FOR MEETINGS OF TOWN BOARDS AND 
COMMITTEES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2015-18, the Town Council adopted uniform rules of 

order and procedure for the conduct business and public participation at Town board and 

committee meetings; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the aforementioned rules of order 

and procedure should be revised to promote the orderly and efficient conduct of board and 

committee meetings; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that the rules of order and procedure 

adopted by Resolution No. 2015-18 should be revised and that Resolution No. 2015-18 should 

be repealed in its entirety and replaced with this Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves, Florida, as follows:  

Section 1.  The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are confirmed and ratified as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  All meetings of Town boards and committees shall be conducted in 

accordance with the following: 

A. All meetings or workshops shall be governed by the Rules of Procedure
set forth herein, where applicable.

B. Any board or committee member desiring to speak must be recognized by
the Chair. If the Chair desires to participate in a discussion, he or she shall
do so only when all members of the board or committee have spoken at
least once (if so desired). No member of the board or committee shall

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 177 of 187



  

   interrupt another member of the board or committee who has been  
   recognized by the Chair and no member shall dominate the floor in excess 
   of five (5) minutes without offering to yield to other members of the board 
   or committee. 

 
 C.  The Chair shall not use that position to dominate debate or discussion, 

   nor unreasonably cut short or prolong any debate, discussion or taking of 
   any vote. 

 
 D.  Any matters not specifically addressed by this policy will be governed by 

   Robert's Rules of Order to the extent possible. 
 
 E.  Except when abstaining from voting in accordance with Florida Statutes, 

   each member who is present at a meeting must vote on each decision, 
   ruling or other official act. A roll call vote may be had on any matter for 
   which the Chair deems is appropriate; otherwise, all votes may be done 
   by voice vote. For roll call votes, the order of each member vote will rotate 
   after each roll call vote. The Chair shall announce the results after each 
   vote. 

 
F.  Public comments shall be placed on the agenda at the beginning of the 

meeting and at the end of the meeting. Public comments will also be 
entertained for each agenda item. Public Comment will be allowed prior 
to the vote on any item.  

 
 G. Public comment is an opportunity for members of the public to make 

   comment and shall not be a question/answer period conducted with the 
   board or committee.  

 
 H. Persons desiring to speak on an item shall submit a comment card to the 

   board or committee clerk. Public comments made by a member of the 
   public will be limited to one time per subject matter for a total of three 
   minutes. Exceptions may be granted by the Chair.  

 
I. Public comments received in writing will be made part of the record of the 

meeting but shall not be read aloud. 
 
 J. Each person addressing the board or committee shall step up to the podium 

   and state his/her name and address in an audible tone of voice for the 
   record. All public comments must be addressed to the board or committee 
   as a body and not to individuals. Personal verbal attacks upon board or 
   committee members, staff, and/or members of the public will not be 
   tolerated. 

 
 K. Each person addressing the board or committee should refrain from 

   advocating the election or defeat of a candidate for public office, either 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 178 of 187



  

   partisan or non-partisan: (1.) through the use of words, dates, signs, props 
   and/or wearing apparel that convey a message of express advocacy for a 
   person or group of persons; or (2) through comments that, when taken as 
   a whole, can only be interpreted as advocating the election or defeat of 
   one or more identified candidates. 

 
L.  Any person making impertinent obscene, personally insulting, 

defamatory, or slanderous remarks, who is advocating the election or 
defeat of a candidate, or who becomes boisterous or disruptive while 
addressing the board or committee shall be barred by the Chair from 
speaking further, unless permission to continue or again address the board 
or committee is granted by a majority vote of the board or committee 
members present. 

  
Section 3.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held 

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, 

it shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

              Section 5.      This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption. 

Councilmember ____________offered the foregoing resolution. Councilmember 

_______________seconded the motion, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

 
[Remainder of the page intentionally blank.] 

 
  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 179 of 187



  

 

                Aye       Nay     Absent 
 _________________, MAYOR    □   □    □ 

_________________, VICE MAYOR   □   □     □ 

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □ 

_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □  

 
ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF ____________ 2024.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA     
    

ATTEST:             
       Mayor  
        
Town Clerk            
       Vice Mayor  
    
              
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Councilmember  
 
              
Office of the Town Attorney    Councilmember  
   
              
       Councilmember 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 180 of 187



155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 
Agenda Item # 14 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Town Clerk’s Office 

VIA: Francine L. Ramaglia, Town Manager 

DATE: April 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Discussion on Town Council’s 2024 Meeting Schedule 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 

At the beginning of each year, the Town Council is presented with a calendar of scheduled Town 
Council Regular Meeting dates. These meeting dates are subject to change at the approval of the 
Town Council.  

The Town Council Regular Meetings are held the 1st Tuesday of the Month: 

• May 7, 2024
• June 4, 2024
• July 2, 2024
• August 6, 2024
• September 3, 2024
• October 1, 2024
• November 5, 2024
• December 3, 2024

We will need to add the required budget hearing dates for September that are not in conflict with 
the County and the School District. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 181 of 187



This Page Is Blank Intentionally  

 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 182 of 187



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
155 F Road Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 

AGENDA MEMO 
Agenda Item # 15 

TO: Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

FROM: Richard Gallant, E.I., Public Works Director 

DATE:  April 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Road, Drainage and CIP Update 

Background: 

The following items are an update to the road and drainage systems in the Town.  Also included 
is an analysis and recommendation as to how the updated cost information impacts the Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP): 

• Currently IFB# 2024-01 Town FY24 Road Improvement Program is set to be awarded at
the April 2, 2024 Council Meeting.

o The Pre-Bid meeting was conducted on February 21, 2024 which included a drive
through of the various locations is the bidders which to attend.

o All Final Questions due on February 26, 2024, to the Town Clerk were responded
to on March 6, 2024 by the Public Works Director.

o Staff held a community meeting with concerned residents affected by the paving
project on February 29, 2024, and responded to questions regarding the project.

o One Bid Addenda was published to all vendors in attendance to the pre-bid on
March 6, 2024.

o The bids due on March 13, 2024, were opened in the council chambers at 2:30PM
on that day. The bids were read aloud to those present.

o The successful bidder was notified, the protest period elapsed and is set to be
awarded.

• The Public Works Department has begun the process of procuring and laying 7,764 tons
of base rock to prepare for the FY24 Paving Project. As the material arrives, our crews
are placing and shaping the roads so they are properly prepared for the paving process
once the Notice to Proceed is given to the successful bidder.

• The Public Works Director has begun the process of removing 90 trees from five
different roads in preparation for refurbishing and correcting the drainage swales or to
remove an unsafe condition on the following roads: Gruber Rd, Ease Citrus Rd, 6th Court,

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 183 of 187



 

Global Trail, and Casey Road. They have started on Casey Road and have moved to 
Gruber Rd. 

• CIP implications of the bid award and culvert bridge  pricing received since March 5th 
• Attached the draft of the CIP update based on Council direction at the March 5th Council 

meeting, after the first reading of Ordinance 2023-02.  The draft has been updated to 
reflect bid prices received by the Town.   

• The road paving plan has been updated to move the paving of Casey Road, B Road to 
North Road, and North Road from B Road to C Road from FY25 to FY24.  The estimates 
for that portion of the paving had been $422,500, These sections were to be funded by a 
combination of FEMA reimbursement money and a potential donation form the Sod 
Farm. 

• In the bid presented for approval to Council, the total cost of those segments was 
$418,529.  The successful bidder presented a price of $1,696,994. This was $118,744 
above the estimate of $1,578,250. The CIP exhibit has been updated to reflect the paving 
prices in the low bid.  

• In addition, future year’s estimates of paving costs were increased by 10%. 
• The Town also received pricing for the two culverts that had been specifically identified. 

These were also added to the CIP exhibit.   
• The F Road and Collecting Canal culvert bridge project, which includes 3 culverts, was 

considerably higher in cost than originally estimated.  The CIP exhibit has been updated 
to reflect a total cost of $436,300 for that project.   

• Johnson and Davis is reviewing the quote provided to determine if any adjustments can 
be made.  

• As the project is anticipated to cost more than $300,000, the Town’s legal counsel has 
advised that it cannot be awarded based on the existing piggyback agreement. This work 
will be put out to bid.  

• Based on the revised estimate of costs associated with the specific culverts, all the 
remaining budget for swales, catch basins and other control structures is proposed to be 
moved to specifically identified culverts.  $806,000 was allocated in total drainage 
projects.  The current estimation is $824,700. The additional $18,700 is being 
recommended to be taken from the Town’s FEMA reimbursement monies. 

• The total amount needed to fund the CIP with aforementioned updates is now $4,255,437 
versus funds available of $3,733,643.  Staff continues to recommend the CIP be funded 
with the shortfall coming from a combination of FEMA reimbursement monies and 
potential Sod Farm donation.   

• The shortfall of $521,794 is proposed to be funded by $272,000 in FEMA monies and 
$250,000 from the donation.  If the donation is not received, the B Road and North Road 
from B to C segments would not move forward as a part of this year’s paving project.   

• The anticipated change order necessary to complete the FY23 paving project would be 
funded by additional FEMA reimbursement.  The Town currently anticipates 
approximately $400,000 of total FEMA reimbursement. 

• In addition to the projects listed in the CIP, the Public Works Director and Town 
Manager have identified the following projects that are proposed to be funded from the 
carryover of FY23 operating funds from the 105 (Roads and Drainage) fund to FY24.  A 
total of $321,000 was carried forward.   

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 184 of 187



 

o The Public Works Director has identified another culvert bridge at 24th and F that 
needs replacement and is recommending the replacement take place prior to 
paving the adjacent segment.  The cost is anticipated to be $140,000. Staff 
believes the funding for this project will come from carryover from FY23. 

• If Council concurs with this direction the CIP Exhibit will be amended to reflect the 
changes and sources of funding prior to second reading of the ordinance which is 
currently scheduled for May 7, 2024. 

• Royal Auction Group picked up the equipment below for disposal. 
o 2000 Sterling L9500 Dump Truck 
o 2004 John Deere Combination loader/excavator 

• The Public Works Department will bring forward the equipment below in May for 
disposal” 

o 2014 Ledwell/Freightliner LW4000 WT Water Truck 
o 2010 Gradall XL5100 
o 2013 John Deere 6105M Tractor 

• The Public Works Director is currently working with South Port Truck in Tampa, Florida 
to procure a 2024 12-Yard 8.8L Freightliner or approved equal through the Florida 
Department of Financial Services Contract 25101600-21-STC.  

o The initial cost of the truck is $106,887.00 prior to any dealer fees. 
o This vehicle is required to conduct a large portion of the work required by the 

public works department.  
o From October 2021 through December 2023, the Public Works Department spent 

$79,424,42 in rentals from United Rentals. 
o The Department is currently renting a 4-Yard dump truck from Equipment Share 

at a cost of $4,500 a month.  
o The previous and current rental is not large enough to facilitate the needs of the 

Town. 
o It is more financially advantageous for the Town to purchase a new truck then 

continue renting.  
• Public Works staff is currently working on rehabilitating and clearing the canals in the 

Town.  
o Currently there is approximately three to four foot of sediment in the bottom of 

most of the stormwater conveyance canals in the Town. 
o The Public Works Director has begun to procure 9” to 24” rubble to place at the 

water line and sodding above the median water table elevation to solidify the 
canal banks and prevent future slides. 

o WBI has completed the 2,000 foot of canal bank they are rehabilitating on 
Collecting Canal. The project has been accepted by the Town as complete. 

o As the canal banks are stabilized, staff will begin the process of removing the 
excess sediment from the canals.  

• The Public Works Director has begun the process of attempting to resolve the various 
issues concerning the traffic issues throughout the Town.  

o  As the Public Works Director was advised that the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
does not have an interlocal agreement with Palm Beach County Traffic and 
Engineering Department, staff has installed new speed limit signs where they 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 185 of 187



 

were missing on Okeechobee Blvd 150 foot past every intersection. They have 
been installed at legal height and are fully enforceable. 

o The Public Works Department has corrected or replaced the stop signs on 
Okeechobee Blvd from the side roads. 

o Additionally, Stop Sign Ahead signs will need to be installed at a cost of $128.47 
per sign. 

o In assessing the Okeechobee Blvd corridor, it was identified the Fire Station 
Warning System is inoperative. We attempted to repair and the system and 
determined the system is beyond its useful life and requires replacement. The 
Public Works Director has begun the process of determining the cost to replace. 
The initial quotes are less than $10,000 for the system.  

o Public Works staff is continuing to assess replacing the signs throughout the 
town.  

o Speed hump chevrons and signs are in the process of being installed throughout 
the Town.  

• The Public Works Director has begun reviewing various trail and LPR cameras to be 
placed throughout the town to assist the Public Works Department and Palm Beach 
County Sheriff’s Office find and prosecute those individuals who wish to use our town 
for illegal dumping.  

o The Public Works Director has procured two cameras to test prior to placement in 
the field. The two cameras procured to date are the Vosker V200 and V300.  

o Other devices may be procured to determine the best option for the Town and the 
purpose.  

o Testing should be complete by April at which time areas will be determined and 
the specific residents where we may want to install them on their properties will 
be notified. Once these properties are identified, the camera locations will only be 
known to the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, Public Works Director, and 
only staff who would need to know.  

o The Public Works Director is also reviewing LPR’s that will be strategically 
placed to capture of the license plates on the vehicles caught dumping on the other 
cameras. 

o The Public Works Director met the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office at their 
Real Time Crime Center and reviewed the operation of the Strategic Intelligence 
Section. Items discussed were their systems and LPR’s as well as how we could 
mutually assist each other. The Public Works Director has a few leads on 
procuring LPR cameras that can be linked with Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 
Office systems. 

• The Public Works team is still diligently removing tires that are illegally dumped around 
the Town. We are still utilizing the contract with Coastal to empty the 30 yard dumpster 
about once a month that was full of tires. The epidemic of illegal tire disposal has risen in 
the past few months.  

• The Public Works Director has, at least once a week, removed all of the illegal temporary 
yard signs. The largest concentration is located at Southern Blvd and B Rd and 
throughout the Okeechobee corridor. Since the February council meeting the Public 
Works Director alone has removed about 100 signs throughout the town. 

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 186 of 187



 

• The Public Works Department is currently catching up on previous work conducted in 
the 2022 and 2023 fiscal years. This includes all of the permits for the paving projects as 
well as the culverts that have been installed.  

• To correct this issue in the future, all of our invitation to bid documents as well as 
contracts for work will require the contractor to complete these documents.  

• The Public Works Director has identified two culverts that needs to be replaced 
preferably before FY25. They are at 12th Place N at F Rd and F Rd at Collecting Canal. 

o It is our intent to use a portion of the state allocation to complete this work.  
o The Public Works Director has obtained pricing for this work and is bringing the 

12th Place N at F Rd at the April council meeting.  
o Due to the cost, the F Rd at Collecting Canal will have to be put out to bid. The 

scope of work and drawings are being compiled at this time and will tentatively 
go out to bid in April. 

• Public Works staff is currently reviewing the damaged guard rails throughout the Town. 
o It is the intent of the department to utilize the Southeast Highway and Guardrail 

and Attenuators, LLC piggyback approved by council in February 2023, 
Resolution 2023-14. 

o Once the list is compiled, the guard rails that pose the highest risk to life and 
safety will be considered first.  

• The Public Works Director requested the contractor for PBSC relocate their fence out of 
the A Canal easement. They moved it the next day and staff cleaned the debris from the 
canal at the gate. The Public Works Director evaluated the structure and determined 
significant work will be required to correct issues with the entrance culvert to the gate 
assembly. 

• Public Works staff has been clearing the canal easements and road side from debris and 
over growth. Public Works staff is doing everything in our abilities to restore swale flow 
blocked by exotic tree debris as well as clearing road to make the roads safer. 

• The Public Works Director, who also serves as the Emergency Management Director is 
compiling information to update the emergency management plan and further develop 
our continuity of operation plan. During the process, we will work closely with CERT to 
enhance their abilities as well as educate our staff in working with them. The Public 
Works Director is working on enhancing our wireless capabilities utilizing the existing 
system the Town currently owns as well as enhancing our amateur radio capabilities in 
both the Public Works facilities as well as Town Hall.  

Town Council Regular Meeting Agenda April 2, 2024

Page 187 of 187


	04.02.2024 - Town Council Regular Meeting - Agenda
	Item 4B - Resolution to Select Mayor 032624.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA ELECTING A MAYOR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 2024-2025, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
	ANITA KANE      □  □    □

	Item 5 - Resolution to Select Vice Mayor 032624.pdf
	ANITA KANE      □  □    □

	ADP4EF8.tmp
	Laura Danowski       □   □    □
	Anita Kane        □   □    □
	Robert Shorr        □   □    □
	Margaret Herzog       □   □    □

	ADPA335.tmp
	Laura Danowski       □   □    □
	Anita Kane        □   □    □
	Robert Shorr        □   □    □
	Margaret Herzog       □   □    □

	ADP607F.tmp
	______________, VICE MAYOR    □   □    □

	ITEM 7B - Res 2024-14 12 place n and f rd.pdf
	_______________, VICE MAYOR    □   □    □

	ADP8CA0.tmp
	______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □

	ITEM 9C - rescind scholarship.pdf
	______________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □

	ITEM 10B - ord advisory board 1st reading.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03
	WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves wishes to adopt an ordinance to address its advisory boards, including but not limited to their composition, qualifications, appointment, terms, removal, and vacancies; and,
	WHEREAS, the Town wishes to ensure that all Town advisory boards comply with the new ordinance and that advisory board provisions throughout the Town’s Code of Ordinances and Unified Land Development Regulations are consistent with the same; and
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA:
	Section 4: Conflicts. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.




	Item 11B - Ordinance Revising Chapter 2.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-02
	WHEREAS, Section 5 of Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, authorizes the Town Council to determine times and places and its own rules and order of business for the conduct of meetings of the Town Council; and
	WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Article II of the Code of Ordinances provides rules of procedure, decorum, and order for meetings of the Town Council and Town boards; and
	WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend Chapter 2, Article II, to remove outdated provisions and provide for the adoption by resolution of supplemental rules of procedure, decorum, and order; and
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA:
	Sec. 2-22. - Special meetings of town council.
	(a) The town clerk shall, at the request of the mayor or on written request of three or more council members, call special meetings of the town council by notifying, in writing, or otherwise, all of the members of the town council that a special meeti...
	(b) Except in cases of an emergency meeting, notification supplied to each town council member and the public, pursuant to this section, whether in writing or otherwise, must be received at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of said special me...
	Sec. 2-23. Town council meetings generally.




	Item 11B - Ordinance Revising Chapter 2.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. 2024-02
	WHEREAS, Section 5 of Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, authorizes the Town Council to determine times and places and its own rules and order of business for the conduct of meetings of the Town Council; and
	WHEREAS, Chapter 2, Article II of the Code of Ordinances provides rules of procedure, decorum, and order for meetings of the Town Council and Town boards; and
	WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend Chapter 2, Article II, to remove outdated provisions and provide for the adoption by resolution of supplemental rules of procedure, decorum, and order; and
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA:
	Sec. 2-22. - Special meetings of town council.
	(a) The town clerk shall, at the request of the mayor or on written request of three or more council members, call special meetings of the town council by notifying, in writing, or otherwise, all of the members of the town council that a special meeti...
	(b) Except in cases of an emergency meeting, notification supplied to each town council member and the public, pursuant to this section, whether in writing or otherwise, must be received at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of said special me...
	Sec. 2-23. Town council meetings generally.




	Item 11C - 2 Revised Rules 3.13.24.pdf
	TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
	TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE
	Rule 1. Public Meetings.
	Rule 2. Regular Meetings.
	Rule 3. Special Meetings
	Rule 4. Adjourned Meeting A Town Council session may be adjourned or continued from day to day or for more than one day, but the adjournment shall not be extended beyond the next regular meeting.
	Rule 5. Presiding Officer
	Rule 6. Corporate Seal The duly appointed Town Clerk shall keep in custody the Town’s corporate seal and ensure its proper and lawful use on behalf of the Town. No person shall use the Town Seal for a purpose other than official Town business.
	Rule 7. Presentations & Public Comment
	Rule 8. Decorum and Order
	Rule 9. Rules of Debate
	Rule 10. Appointments to the Council and Boards & Committees
	Rule 11. Quorum  A majority of the full Council shall constitute a quorum. No ordinance, resolution, or motion shall be adopted except by the affirmative vote of at least three members of the Town Council. If no quorum exists within fifteen(15) minute...
	Rule 12. Absent Member Participation by Telephone Conference
	Rule 13. Suspension and Amendment of these Rules



	ITEM 11D - Res Adopt Revise Rules of Procedure.pdf
	TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES RESOLUTION NO. 2024-___
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

	_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □
	Exhibit “A”
	to Resolution No. 2024-
	[Remainder of the page intentionally blank.]

	ITEM 11E - Res adopt advise board.pdf
	TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES RESOLUTION NO. 2024-19
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO PROCEDURES and public participation for MEETINGS OF TOWN BOARDS AND COMMITTEES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICT, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

	_________________, COUNCILMEMBER   □   □    □




